### **Public Document Pack**

#### CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL

Minutes of a meeting of the **Strategic Planning Board** held on Wednesday, 5th December, 2012 at Council Chamber, Municipal Buildings, Earle Street, Crewe CW1 2BJ

#### **PRESENT**

Councillor H Davenport (Chairman) Councillor D Hough (Vice-Chairman)

Councillors Rachel Bailey, D Brown, P Edwards, J Hammond, P Hoyland, P Mason, B Murphy, S Wilkinson, J Wray and R Cartlidge (Substitute)

#### **OFFICERS IN ATTENDANCE**

Miss J Adeniran (Planning Solicitor), Mr D Evans (Principal Planning Officer), Mrs P Evans (Lawyer), Mr A Fisher (Strategic Planning and Housing Manager), Mr B Haywood (Principal Planning Officer), Mr S Irvine (Development Management and Building Control Manager), Mr N Jones (Principal Development Officer), Ms S Orrell (Principal Planning Officer), Mrs E Tutton (Principal Planning Officer) and Miss E Williams (Principal Planning Officer)

#### 98 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Mrs J Jackson, C Thorley and G Walton.

Councillor R Cartlidge acted as a Substitute for Councillor Mrs J Jackson.

#### 99 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST/PRE DETERMINATION

In the interest of openness in relation to application 12/3937M, Councillor H Davenport declared that he and some other Members knew Mr Yates who was speaking as an objector.

In the interest of openness in relation to applications 12/3329C and 12/4115N, Councillor J Hammond declared that he was a member of Cheshire Wildlife trust who had been consulted on both of the applications.

#### 100 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING

That the minutes of the meeting held on 14 November 2012 be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman subject to the declaration made by Councillor J Hammond in relation to application number 12/1157N under Minute No.86 Declarations of Interest/Pre determination being amended to include reference to the fact that whilst he had attended briefings with the applicant, their agents, Officers and other Ward

Members regarding the overall Basford East/ Basford West development sites he had given no opinion whatsoever on the merits of this specific application.

In addition there was a further amendment to the fourth bullet point of the Section 106 Agreement under Minute No.90 application number 12/3564N to include the following wording:-

'The Section 106 Agreement a footpath be installed along Maw Lane from its junction with Clay Lane and the Skate Park Facility'.

(This item was considered after Minute No.105 in order for clarification of the amendments to be sought. At this point Councillors D Brown and P Mason declared in the interest of openness that they were the Ward Members for applications 12/3025C and 12/3028C).

#### 101 **PUBLIC SPEAKING**

Consideration was given to the public speaking procedure.

#### **RESOLVED**

That the public speaking procedure be noted.

# 102 12/3329C-MIXED-USE RETAIL, EMPLOYMENT AND LEISURE DEVELOPMENT, LAND SOUTH OF, OLD MILL ROAD, SANDBACH FOR MR CARL DAVEY

Consideration was given to the above application.

(Councillor S Corcoran, the Ward Councillor, Councillor B Moran, a neighbouring Ward Councillor, Councillor Mrs G Merry, a neighbouring Ward Councillor, Town Councillor Mrs C Lowe, representing Sandbach Town Council, Steve Allan, Chairman of StopOldMillQuarter Campaign and Mr Twemlow, the Planning Agent representing Waitrose who were objecting attended the meeting and spoke in respect of the application).

#### **RESOLVED**

That for the reasons set out in the report and in the Update to the Board, that the application be refused for the following reasons:-

1.The proposed development relates to an out-of-centre retail development which fails to satisfy the sequential test and does not satisfy the retail impact test of the NPPF (Para's 24 & 26) and Policy S2 (Shopping and Commercial Development Outside Town Centres). The proposed development is not considered to be sustainable development and would have a significant adverse impact upon Sandbach in terms of the impact upon the vitality and viability of the town centre. The proposed

development is therefore not sustainable development and contrary to the guidance contained within the NPPF and Policies S2 (Shopping and Commercial Development Outside Town Centres) of the Congleton Borough Local Plan First Review (2005) which seek to promote competitive town centre environments.

- 2.The proposed access and improvements at the Old Mill Roundabout and the junction of The Hill/High Street/Old Mill Road would not mitigate the impact of the proposed development which is reliant on carborne trade. The development would result in increased congestion at these junctions which are already at capacity. As a result the transport impact of the development would be severe and the development is not considered to be sustainable development. The proposal is contrary to the NPPF and Policies GR9 (Accessibility, Servicing and Parking Provision) and GR18 (Traffic Generation) of the Congleton Borough Local Plan First Review (2005) which seek to maximise sustainable transport solutions.
- 3.Part of the application site is located within the Sandbach Wildlife Corridor and the proposed development would result in a significant loss of habitat within the wildlife corridor. The proposed development does not include any details mitigation to off-set this impact and as a result, the proposed development does not conserve and enhance biodiversity. Therefore the proposal would not be sustainable and would be contrary to the NPPF and Policy NR4 (Non-statutory sites) of the Congleton Borough Local Plan First Review (2005).
- 4.The Local Planning Authority considers that insufficient information has been submitted with this application in relation to the impact upon air quality, noise and odour. Without these assessments it is not possible to fully assess the impact of the development upon surrounding residential properties and as a result there is a potential detrimental impact upon residential amenity. Therefore the proposal is contrary to the NPPF and Policies GR1 (New Development) and GR6 (Amenity and Health) of the Congleton Borough Local Plan First Review (2005) which seek to contribute to conserve and enhance the natural environment and reduce pollution and protect residential amenity.
- 5.The proposed development is an inappropriate form of development within the open countryside. The development would not preserve the openness of the countryside and maintain or enhance its local character. Therefore the proposal would not be sustainable development and would be contrary to the provisions of Policies PS3 and PS8 of the adopted Congleton Borough Local Plan First Review and the NPPF which states that planning should recognise the intrinsic character and beauty of the countryside.
- 6. The proposed development would involve the loss of the best and most versatile agricultural land. As the proposed development is not necessary it would not represent sustainable development as it would result in the

loss of a finite resource. The proposal is therefore contrary to paragraph 112 of the NPPF.

In the event of any changes being needed to the wording of the Committee's decision (such as to delete, vary or add conditions/informatives/planning obligations or reasons for approval/refusal) prior to the decision being issued, the Head of Development Management and Building Control has delegated authority to do so in consultation with the Chairman of the Strategic Planning Board, provided that the changes do not exceed the substantive nature of the Committee's decision.

(During consideration of the application, Councillor P Hoyland arrived to the meeting, however he did not take part in the debate or vote on the application).

103 12/4115N-DUAL CARRIAGEWAY ROAD, KNOWN AS THE CREWE GREEN LINK ROAD (SOUTH) LINKING THE A500 WITH THE A5020 AND ASSOCIATED WORKS, FIELDS BETWEEN THE A5020 WESTON ROAD AND THE A500, WITH AN ADDITIONAL AREA TO THE SOUTH OF THE A500 OFF WESTON LANE, CREWE FOR KEVIN MELLINGS, CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL

Consideration was given to the above application.

(Parish Councillor John Cornell, the Vice Chairman of Weston & Basford Parish Council and Mrs Kate Boundy, an objector attended the meeting and spoke in respect of the application).

#### **RESOLVED**

That for the reasons set out in the report and in the update to Board the application be approved subject to the following conditions:-

- 1. Standard time 3 years
- 2. Development to proceed in accordance with the approved plans
- 3. Details of the diversion of PROW Basford FP1
- 4. No development shall take place within the area indicated until the applicant, or their agents or successors in title, has secured the implementation of a programme of archaeological work in accordance with a written scheme of investigation which has been submitted by the applicant and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The work shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the approved scheme.
- 5. Prior to the commencement of development a detailed tree felling/pruning specification shall be submitted to the LPA for approval in writing
- 6. Prior to the commencement of development a detailed Arboricultural Method Statement shall be submitted and approved by the LPA

- 7. Prior to the commencement of development a detailed Tree Protection Scheme shall be submitted and approved by the LPA
- 8. Prior to the commencement of development a detailed Landscaping Scheme (including native species only) shall be submitted and approved by the LPA
- 9. Implementation of the approved landscaping scheme
- 10. Prior to any development commencing a scheme stating the hours of construction shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details.
- 11. Prior to any such works taking place a scheme detailing method, timing and duration of any pile driving, bridge foundation and borrow pit operations connected with the construction of the development shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details. The details should include provisions for mitigation and liaison with residences that may be affected by noise or vibration.
- 12. Prior to the development commencing:
  - (a) An investigation and Risk Assessment shall be carried out to assess the potential risks from land contamination as defined in the supplied geo-environmental risk assessment.
  - (b) If such investigation and Risk Assessment identifies that remedial/protective measures are required, then a remedial/protection scheme shall be submitted to, and approved by, the Local Planning Authority (LPA) and shall be implemented.
  - (c) If remedial/protective measures are required, a Site Completion Statement detailing the remedial/protective measures incorporated shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the LPA in full prior to use of the development.
- 13. The duct mitigation measures outlined in the updated Air Quality section of the Environmental Impact Statement (Chapter 8) shall be implemented, monitored and enforced throughout the construction phase of the development.
- 14. Prior to undertaking any works between 1<sup>st</sup> March and 31<sup>st</sup> August in any year, a detailed survey is required to check for nesting birds
- 15. Submission of revised protected species mitigation method statements including detailed plans showing Badger fencing, Badger tunnels and barn owl boxes.
- 16. Submission of environment management plan for the construction phase of the development
- 17. Submission of ecological monitoring and reporting schedule.
- 18. Submission of a 10 year Habitat Management Plan
- 19. Details of all external lighting to be submitted and agreed in writing with the LPA
- 20. The development permitted shall only be carried out in accordance with the approved FRA
- 21. The development shall not be commenced until a scheme for compensatory flood drainage scheme has been submitted to the LPA for approval.

- 22. A surface water regulation scheme shall be submitted to the LPA for approval in writing
- 23. A detailed design for the provision of flood defence structures shall be submitted to the LPA
- 24. No development shall take place until a scheme for the provision and management of a 8 metres metre wide undeveloped buffer zone around the main rivers and a 5 metres wide undeveloped buffer zone around none main water courses and ponds shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the local planning authority.
- 25. Prior to the commencement of development, details of all bridges proposed on site shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority
- 26. No development shall take place until a plan detailing the protection and mitigation of damage to populations of white-clawed crayfish and sand martins and their associated habitat during construction works and once the development is complete
- 27. Prior to commencement of development details of all outfalls proposed on site shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority
- 28. No development shall take place until a scheme for the provision and management of compensatory habitat shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority
- 29. If, during development, contamination not previously identified is found to be present at the site then no further development (unless otherwise agreed in writing with the local planning authority) shall be carried out until the developer has submitted a remediation strategy to the local planning authority detailing how this unsuspected contamination shall be dealt with and obtained written approval from the LPA.
- 30. Should the borrow pit to the south of the A500 Shavington By Pass be required full details including access arrangements and wheel washing facilities etc.be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority'.

In the event of any changes being needed to the wording of the Committee's decision (such as to delete, vary or add conditions/informatives/planning obligations or reasons for approval/refusal) prior to the decision being issued, the Head of Development Management and Building Control has delegated authority to do so in consultation with the Chairman of the Strategic Planning Board, provided that the changes do not exceed the substantive nature of the Committee's decision.

(During consideration of the application, Councillor Mrs R Bailey arrived to the meeting, however she did not take part in the debate or vote on the application).

(The meeting adjourned for a short break at 12.10pm and reconvened at 12.15pm).

104 12/3937M-ERECTION OF DWELLING, LONGLEA, LANGLEY ROAD, LANGLEY, CHESHIRE FOR DAVID CLARKE

(Councillor Mrs H Gaddum, the Ward Councillor and Mr P Yates, an objector attended the meeting and spoke in respect of the application).

#### **RESOLVED**

That for the reasons set out in the report and in the update to Board the application be approved subject to the following conditions:-

- 1. Development in accord with approved
- 2. Materials as per application
- 3. Submission of a further revised landscaping scheme
- 4. Revised landscaping scheme to include detailed plans for boundary treatment
- 5. Landscaping (implementation for retrospective planning application)
- 6. Protection from noise during construction (hours of construction)
- 7. Submission of construction method statement-Within 1 month of the date of this permission, a method statement shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, which outlines where contractor's vehicles will be parked. Once approved, the scheme shall take immediate effect, and remain in effect until the development is complete.
- 8. Tree protection and service / drainage shall be in accordance with Cheshire Woodlands tree protection plan CW/6610-P-TP (Rev1)
- 9. Obscure glazing requirement first floor window in the side (west) elevation

The first floor window in the west facing elevation serving the master bedroom & the first floor window in the east facing elevation serving the en suite bathroom shall be permanently obscurely glazed, prior to first occupation, and retained thereafter. Prior to the installation of such fenestration, a sample of the obscure glass shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The fenestration shall be installed in accordance with the approved sample. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 1995 (or any order revoking or re-enacting that order with or without modification), no windows / dormer windows other than those expressly authorised by this permission shall be constructed.

10. Removal of Permitted Development Rights

#### 105 LAND AT MILL STREET/LOCKITT STREET, CREWE

Consideration was given to the above report.

#### RESOLVED

That for the reasons set out in the report the Board amend the previous resolution in respect of application P07/0639 to read:

The provision of on site open space and equipped children's playspace in accordance with Policy RT.3 of the Local Plan with any shortfall in provision to be made up by way of a developer contribution in lieu of public open space calculated at £1000 per house (index linked),

Affordable housing provision, which shall include a requirement that:

35% affordable housing be provided, of which 100% shall be affordable rented

Details of phasing of development to include the provision of the affordable/market housing and the pedestrian / cycle link within the first phase.

A scheme of public art to be agreed for the site

(The meeting adjourned for lunch at 1.30pm and reconvened at 2.10pm).

# 106 12/2440N-OUTLINE APPLICATION - PROPOSED RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT, LAND OFF QUEENS DRIVE, NANTWICH FOR GLADMAN DEVELOPMENTS LIMITED

Consideration was given to the above report.

#### **RESOLVED**

That for the reasons set out in the report and in the update to Board that the Authority contest the forthcoming Appeal against non-determination on the following basis:

- 1. In the opinion of the Local Planning Authority, the proposal will cause capacity problems at the High Street/Waterlode/Welsh Row signal junction. These adverse impacts would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits of the proposal in terms of housing land supply, when assessed against the policies at paragraph 32 and 35 of the National Planning Policy Framework and would be contrary to Policy BE3 (Access and Parking) of the Borough of Crewe and Nantwich Replacement Local Plan 2011.
- 2. In the opinion of the Local Planning Authority, the proposal will cause danger to highway safety associated with the operation of the High Street/Waterlode/Welsh Row signal junction, particularly in respect pedestrians crossing the junction. These adverse impacts would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits of the

proposal in terms of housing land supply, when assessed against the policies at paragraph 32 and 35 of the National Planning Policy Framework and would be contrary to Policy BE3 (Access and Parking) of the Borough of Crewe and Nantwich Replacement Local Plan 2011.

- 3. In the opinion of the Local Planning Authority, the accessibility of the site is considered poor in that it considered that most workday trips will be car based. It is possible to improve the non-car mode accessibility and discussions have been undertaken to improve public transport access, although no improvements have been agreed to date. The proposal is therefore considered to be unsustainable and the adverse impacts granting planning permission would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits of the proposal in terms of housing land supply, when assessed against the policies at paragraphs 30, 32, 34, and 35 of the National Planning Policy Framework and would be contrary to Policy BE3 (Access and Parking) of the Borough of Crewe and Nantwich Replacement Local Plan 2011.
- 4. The Proposed development represents a significant and substantial additional residential development on the periphery of Nantwich, which conflicts with Policy NE2 of the adopted Crewe & Nantwich Local Plan. Notwithstanding the provisions of paragraph 49 of the National Planning Policy Framework .the Development is of sufficient size that individually and cumulatively it conflicts with and undermines decisions regarding the scale, location and phasing of development contained within the Draft Cheshire East Local Plan Development Strategy. These adverse impacts would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits of the proposal in terms of housing land supply, when assessed against the policies at paragraph 14 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

(At this point in proceedings in the interest of openness, Councillor Mrs R Bailey declared that she was a Governor of Reaseheath College).

(Prior to consideration of the following application, Councillors P Edwards and P Hoyland left the meeting and did not return).

107 12/3025C-ERECTION OF UP TO 40 DWELLINGS, OPEN SPACE, ASSOCIATED LANDSCAPING, INFRASTRUCTURE AND ACCESS, LAND OFF GOLDFINCH CLOSE AND KESTREL CLOSE, CONGLETON, CHESHIRE FOR MICHAEL JOHNSON, SEDDON HOMES LIMITED

Consideration was given to the above application.

(Councillor A Thwaite, the Ward Councillor, Town Councillor Amanda Martin, representing Congleton Town Council, Andrew Pear, representing Link2Prosperity, Mark Jones, an objector and Ken Whitaker, the Managing

Director of Seddon Homes attended the meeting and spoke in respect of the application).

#### RESOLVED

For the reasons set out in the report and the update to Board the Board be minded to approve subject the completion of a S106 Agreement to secure the following:-

• Amenity green space contribution for on site provision:

Maintenance: £ 11,352.00

Children and Young Persons Provision,

Enhanced Provision: £ 8,790.72 Maintenance: £ 28, 656.00

- Education Contribution in lieu of primary provision of £65,078 (based on 40 units)
- 12 affordable units in total (or 30% of total), split as (65%) or 8 units for social or affordable rent and 35% or 4 for intermediate tenure
- Contribution to Public realm Strategy (£30000)

And subject to the following conditions

- 1. Commencement within 1 years of reserved matters
- 2. Submission of reserved matters (all matter other than access) within 18 months or 12 months after the last reserved matter (whichever is later)
- 3. Plans
- 4. Tree and hedgerow protection measures
- 5. Arboricultural Method statement
- 6. Landscape maintenance and management
- 7. Boundary treatment to be submitted with reserved matters
- 8. Breeding Bird Survey for works in nesting season
- 9. Bats and bird boxes
- 10. Provision and management of at least a 5 metre wide buffer zone alongside the stream
- 11. Updated protected species survey and method statement prior to commencement
- 12. Submission of a scheme to limit the overland flow generated by the proposed development,
- 13. Reserved matters to make provision for containing any such flooding within the site, to ensure that existing and new buildings are not affected and that safe access and egress is provided.
- 14. Submission of a scheme of Sustainable Urban Drainage

- 15. Submission of a scheme to manage the risk of flooding from overland flow of surface water, has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
- 16. This site to be drained on a total separate system, with only foul drainage connected into the public foul sewerage system.
- 17. The reserved matters application submitted pursuant to this outline planning permission shall provide a feasibly study, framework and schedule to improve pedestrian and cycling links between the site and Lamberts Lane
- 18. The hours of construction of the development (and associated deliveries to the site) shall be restricted to: Monday Friday 08:00 to 18:00 hrs Saturday 09:00 to 14:00 hrs Sundays and Public Holidays Nil
- 19. Should there be a requirement to undertake foundation or other piling on site it is recommended that these operations are restricted to: Monday Friday 08:30 17:30 hrs Saturday 09:30 13:00 hrs Sunday and Public Holidays Nil
- 20. Submission of scheme to minimise dust emissions arising from construction activities on the site
- 21. Submission of a Contaminated Land Phase II investigation.
- 22. Submission of Construction Management Plan
- 23. Reserved Matters to include details of bin storage.
- 24. Reserved matters to include 10% renewables
- 25. Landscaping to include replacement hedge planting/ use native species
- 26. Arboricultural Impact Assessment and Tree Protection Plan to form part of the reserved matters
- 27. Implementation of a programme of archaeological work in accordance with a written scheme of investigation
- 28. Reserved matters to incorporate existing and proposed levels and boundary treatments
- 29. Reserved matters to including design coding as per the Design and Access statement
- 30. Pedestrian refuge Canal Rd to be provided prior to 1<sup>st</sup> occupation
- 31. Any reserved matters application to be supported by a Badger Mitigation Strategy. The strategy to include detailed proposals for the provision and location of an artificial sett and appropriate linking habitat provision to ensure the sett has appropriate habitat links to the adjacent open countryside. The strategy is to be informed by the results of a further detailed badger survey which includes a bait marking study.

In the event of any changes being needed to the wording of the committee's decision (such as to delete, vary or addition conditions / informatives / planning obligations or reasons for approval / refusal) prior to the decision being issued, the Development Management and Building Control Manager, in consultation with the Chair of the Strategic Planning Board is delegated the authority to do so, provided that he does not exceed the substantive nature of the Committee's decision. (This was a change in the Officers original recommendation from one of

(This was a change in the Officers original recommendation from one of approval to 'minded to approve').

108 12/3028C-ERECTION OF UP TO 40 DWELLINGS, OPEN SPACE, ASSOCIATED LANDSCAPING, INFRASTRUCTURE, ACCESS AND DEMOLITION OF PORTAL SHED, LAND OFF, THE MOORINGS, CONGLETON FOR MICHAEL JOHNSON, SEDDON HOMES LIMITED

Consideration was given to the above application.

(Councillor A Thwaite, the Ward Councillor, Town Councillor Denis Murphy, representing Congleton Town Council, Andrew Pear, representing Link2Prosperity, Derek White, an objector and Kate McClean, the agent for the applicant attended the meeting and spoke in respect of the application).

#### **RESOLVED**

That for the reasons set out in the report and in the update to Board the Board be minded to approve the application subjection to the completion of a S106 Agreement securing the following:-

Amenity green space contribution for on site provision:

Maintenance: £ 11,352.00

Children and Young Persons Provision,

Enhanced Provision: £ 8,790.72 Maintenance: £ 28,656.00

- Education Contribution in lieu of primary provision of £65,078 (based on 40 units)
- 12 affordable units in total (or 30% of total), split as (65%) or 8 units for social or affordable rent and 35% or 4 for intermediate tenure
- Contribution to Congleton Public Realm Strategy of £30,000

And subject to the following conditions

- 1. Commencement within 1 years of reserved matters
- 2. Submission of reserved matters (all matter other than access) within 18 months or 12 months after the last reserved matter (whichever is later)
- 3. Plans
- 4. Reserved matters to include design coding in accordance
- 5. Tree and hedgerow protection measures
- 6. Arboricultural Method statement
- 7. Landscape maintenance and management
- 8. Boundary treatments to be submitted with reserved matters

- 9. Reserved matters to make provision for habitat creation within indicative areas of open space
- 10. Breeding Bird Survey for works in nesting season
- 11. Bats and bird boxes
- 12. Updated badger survey and method statement prior to commencement
- 13. Reserved matters to include details of 10% renewable energy provision
- 14. Submission of a scheme to limit the surface water run-off generated by the proposed development.
- 15. Reserved matters to make provision for containing any such flooding within the site, to ensure that existing and new buildings are not affected and that safe access and egress is provided.
- 16. Submission of a scheme of Sustainable Urban Drainage
- 17. Submission of a scheme to manage the risk of flooding from overland flow of surface water, has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
- 18. This site must be drained on a separate system, with only foul drainage connected into the public foul sewerage system.
- 19. The hours of construction of the development (and associated deliveries to the site) shall be restricted to: Monday - Friday 08:00 to 18:00 hrs Saturday 09:00 to 14:00 hrs Sundays and Public Holidays Nil
- 20. Should there be a requirement to undertake foundation or other piling on site it is recommended that these operations are restricted to: Monday -Friday 08:30 - 17:30 hrs Saturday 09:30 - 13:00 hrs Sunday and Public Holidays Nil
- 21. Submission of scheme to minimise dust emissions arising from construction activities on the site
- 22. Submission of a Contaminated Land Phase II investigation.
- 23. Submission of Construction Management Plan
- 24. Right turn lane/Pedestrian refuge Canal Rd into to be provided prior to 1<sup>st</sup> occupation
- 25. The reserved matters application submitted pursuant to this outline planning permission shall provide a feasibly study, framework and schedule to improve pedestrian and cycling links between the site and Lamberts Lane 26. Landscaping to include replacement hedge planting
- 27. Arboricultural Impact Assessment and Tree Protection Plan to form part of the reserved matters
- 28. Implementation of a programme of archaeological work in accordance with a written scheme of investigation
- 29. Reserved matters to incorporate existing and proposed levels and boundary treatments
- 30. Reserved matters to incorporate design coding
- 31. The development hereby approved/permitted shall be serviced in a manner that precludes the use of overhead or over ground pipe work or lines. No development shall take place unless and until a scheme for laying all services in ductwork, below ground level, has been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority and such works that form the approved scheme shall be completed before the development is brought into use.

In the event of any changes being needed to the wording of the committee's decision (such as to delete, vary or addition conditions / informatives / planning obligations or reasons for approval / refusal) prior to the decision being issued, the Development Management and Building Control Manager, in consultation with the Chair of the Strategic Planning Board is delegated the authority to do so, provided that he does not exceed the substantive nature of the Committee's decision.

(This was a change in the Officers recommendation from one of approval to one of 'minded to approve').

WITHDRAWN-12/0682C-CREATION OF 109 NEW 27 BEDROOM HOTEL, 2 NO. GARDEN SUITES AN A '19TH HOLE' BUILDING ASSOCIATED CAR **PARKING.MINOR** WITH MODIFICATIONS TO THE GOLF COURSE AND CONSTRUCTION OF 7 NO. DWELLINGS TO KINGS LANE (AS ENABLING DEVELOPMENT) FOR COMMUNITY LEISURE FACILITIES (BOWLING GREEN/HUT AND 3 NO TENNIS COURTS) TO BE PROVIDED WITHIN THE GOLF COURSE, WOODSIDE, KNUTSFORD ROAD, CRANAGE, HOLMES CHAPEL, CREWE, CHESHIRE FOR WOODSIDE GOLF CLUB

This application was withdrawn from the agenda prior to the meeting.

(Prior to consideration of the following application, Councillors D brown and P Mason left the meeting and did not return).

12/3020N-REMOVAL OF CONDITION 1 OF 09/4331N - CHANGE 110 OF USE AS A RESIDENTIAL CARAVAN SITE FOR 8 GYPSY FAMILIES, **EACH** WITH **TWO** CARAVANS, INCLUDING IMPROVEMENT OF ACCESS, CONSTRUCTION OF ACCESS ROAD. LAYING OF HARDSTANDINGS AND PROVISION OF **FOUL NEW** DRAINAGE. START PARK, WETTENHALL ROAD. REASEHEATH, NANTWICH, CHESHIRE FOR MR GWYN HAMILTON

Consideration was given to the above application.

(A statement on behalf of Councillor M Jones, the Ward Councillor was read out).

#### **RESOLVED**

That for the reasons in the report and in the update to Board the application be refused for the following reason:-

It is acknowledged that the site is poorly located in order to access shops, services and other community facilities and the site is located in an unsustainable location. Consequently, it is considered granting permanent planning permission for this site, which is not in a sustainable location will be in conflict with the aims and aspirations of the developing new Local Plan and guidance advocated in Policy RES.13 (Sites for Gypsies and

Travelling Showpeople) and advice advocated within Planning Policy for Traveller Sites, the National Planning Policy Framework and the Councils Interim Strategy on Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation Needs.

#### 111 EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS

RESOLVED - That the press and public be excluded from the meeting during consideration of the following items pursuant to Section 100(A) 4 of the Local Government Act 1972 on the grounds that they involved the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 and public interest would not be served in publishing the information.

### 112 **12/1445N-WHITTAKERS GREEN FARM, PEWIT LANE,** BRIDGEMERE, CHESHIRE

Consideration was given to the above report.

(Councillor Mrs J Clowes, the Ward Councillor attended the meeting and spoke in respect of the report).

**RESOLVED** 

To approve the Officer's recommendations as contained within the report.

The meeting commenced at 10.30 am and concluded at 5.38 pm

Councillor H Davenport (Chairman)

